
SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL 
MEETING

SUMMONS
10.30 am 
Tuesday, 13th December, 2016

Further information regarding this agenda is available from the 
Democratic Services Department at Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Tel: (01685) 725284,   Email: democratic@merthyr.gov.uk

A G E N D A

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest 

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
To receive Minutes of the Meeting held 18 October 
2016

(1 - 6)

4. Briefing Session 
A briefing session for Panel Members will be held 
from 10.35am to 11.05am (approximately) prior to 
the arrival of any invited attendees or witnesses to 
the Meeting.

5. Refresh of the Police and Crime Plan 
To consider the attached report (7 - 8)

6. Governance Operating Manual 
To consider the attached report (9 - 36)

7. Financial Update Presentation 
To receive a presentation from the Commissioner



Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council is the host local authority for the 
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

8. Oversight of Complaints 
To consider the attached report (37 - 50)

9. Schedule of Meetings 
To consider the attached report (51 - 52)

10. Annual Work Programme 
To consider the attached report (53 - 56)

11. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair 

COMPOSITION: Councillor E C Galsworthy (Merthyr Tydfil)(Chair)
Councillor: R Smith (Rhondda Cynon Taf)(Vice Chair) 

Councillors: R Young (Bridgend), D De’Ath and K Lloyd 
(Cardiff), P Rees (Neath Port Talbot)
S Rees-Owen (Rhondda Cynon Taf)
G Sullivan and P B Smith (Swansea)
A Moore (Vale of Glamorgan)

Co-optee(s): Mr M Jehu and Mr M Jones

together with appropriate officers



MERTHYR TYDFIL COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

MINUTES OF MEETING

SOUTH WALES POLICE AND 
CRIME PANEL MEETING

TUESDAY, 18TH OCTOBER, 2016

PRESENT: Councillor E Galsworthy (In the Chair)

Councillors R Smith, D De'Ath, K Lloyd, P B Smith, G Sullivan, 
P Rees and R Young

Co-optees:
Mr Melvin Jehu

Outside Bodies:
Mr Alun Michael (Police and Crime Commissioner)
Mr Geoff Petty, Mr Cerith Thomas and Ms Emma Wools 

Officers: 
Simon Jones (Senior Solicitor), Howard Jones (Scrutiny Officer) 
and Rebecca Walsh (Legal Department)

ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

1  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received by the following

Councillor Anne  Moore (Committee Member)
Councillor Shelley Rees-Owen (Committee Member)
Mr Martyn Jones (Co-Optee)

2  Declarations of Interest There were no declarations of interest.

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



3  Minutes of Previous 
Meeting(s)

The Chair read through the minutes of the last meeting.

Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 30th June 2016 be 
accepted as an accurate record.

4  Briefing Session The Chair welcomed Cllr Richard Young to the meeting and 
asked if there were any questions that the panel wished to 
discuss.

The Panel discussed agenda item 6, the appointment of the 
new Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner. The members 
asked questions around the structure of the 
Commissioner’s team including the Deputy PCC and 3 
Assistant Commissioners. The Panel agreed that a question 
would be asked of the Commissioner when discussing 
agenda item 6 and possibly make this an agenda item for 
the next meeting.

Mr Jehu asked if the Panel would consider meeting more 
frequently as he feels the Panel would be able to scrutinise 
more information. The Panel agreed that this would be put 
on the agenda for the next meeting as the three panel 
members not present today would need to discuss this.

Mr Simon Jones advised the panel that the Commissioner 
has asked if the Panel agree to the appointment of the 
Deputy PCC, can he publicise the information today. Mr 
Jones stated that the rules are that the Panel will wait 5 
days before it publishes any information about its 
recommendations unless it is agreed with the PCC that this 
information can be released at an earlier stage. The Panel 
agreed that the information can be released today if the 
appointment is confirmed.

Mr Simon Jones reminded the panel members about the 
forthcoming training day on the 29th November 2016.

5  Co-option of two 
Independent Members 
on to the South Wales 
Police and Crime 
Panel

The Chair introduced the subject and Mr Mel Jehu left the 
room at 10:55am.

The Panel discussed the interviews as there were 5 
candidates selected for interview. The Panel agreed that 
standard of candidates was very high. It was agreed by the 
members who were on the interview panel that the best 
candidates were Mr Mel Jehu and Mr Martyn Jones. 

At 11:00am Mr Mel Jehu was invited back into the room. 
Cllr Peter Rees left the room also.

The Chair explained that the Panel were unanimous in their 
decision to re-appoint both co-optees, Mr Mel Jehu and Mr 
Martyn Jones to the Panel. Mr Jehu thanked the Panel.

At 11:02am Cllr Peter Rees returned to the room.

Page 2



6  Confirmation hearing 
for a Deputy Police 
and Crime 
Commissioner

At 11:05am Mr Alun Michael, the Police and Crime 
Commissioner entered the room along with Ms Emma 
Wools, Mr Cerith Thomas and Mr Geoff Petty.

The Commissioner explained the process he has followed 
for appointing the Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner 
and gave the background to his decision to appoint.

Questions were asked regarding the procedure for 
appointing and the Commissioner explained there was an 
open advert and recruitment process. Ms Wools expressed 
an interest in the post of Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner as a secondment. The secondment will 
begin on the 14th November 2016 and will follow the 
Ministry of Justice rules.

At 11:15am the Chair asked Ms Wools to address the 
Panel. Ms Wools gave an overview of her skills and 
experience leading her to become a Deputy Police and 
Crime Commissioner. The Panel questioned Ms Wools on 
several points including the priorities of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner and on Ms Wools’ leadership style. 
Ms Wools answered the questions in detail, providing 
accounts of her varied work experiences.

At 11:50am the Police and Crime Commissioner and his 
team left the room so the Panel could deliberate.

7  Panel Deliberation and 
Decision

Mr Simon Jones advised the Panel of the rules of 
appointing to the Commissioner’s team. 

At 12:03pm the Panel broke for a comfort break and 
reconvened at 12:07pm.

The Panel agreed that they would endorse the appointment 
of Ms Wools as the Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner. 

At 12:10pm the Commissioner and his team were invited 
back into the meeting.

Mr Simon Jones advised the Commissioner of the decision 
of the Panel and explained that the Panel would like to be 
kept informed on the progress of the secondment. The 
Commissioner agreed.

The Chair then explained that a request had been made to 
move agenda item 14 to be next on the agenda. Also 
requested that agenda item 12 be deferred to next meeting. 

8  Statement of Accounts 
for 2015/16 for the 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the 
Chief Constable

The Commissioner asked Mr Geoff Petty to conduct this 
topic.

Mr Petty advised that agenda items 9, 10 and 11 signify the 
end of the audit year. Mr Petty explained the nature of the 
accounts and they are split by the Police and Crime 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable.

Page 3



Mr Petty presented the Statement of Accounts for the year 
ended 31st March 2016. 

The Panel asked questions of Mr Petty and he provided 
detailed answers.

9  Audit of Financial 
Statements report and 
Management Letter 
from the Wales Audit 
Office

Mr Petty made reference to the Audit Report and took 
questions from the Panel. Answers were then provided by 
Mr Petty.

10  Joint Audit 
Committee's Annual 
report 2015/16

Mr Petty advised the Panel that the Joint Audit Committee’s 
Annual report was a clean report. 

The Panel asked questions and Mr Petty provided answers.

Resolved that:

The report be accepted.

11  Annual Governance 
Statement

The Commissioner explained that the Audit Office are 
happy with the Joint Annual Governance Statement and 
Governance Operating Manual. 

Resolved that:

The report be accepted.

12  Governance Operating 
Manual

This item was deferred until the next meeting. However, the 
Commissioner stated that the structure of his team is 
included in this document and answers any questions 
regarding the reporting lines of the Assistant 
Commissioners and the Deputy Police and Crime 
Commissioner.

13  Police and Crime 
Commissioner's 
Annual Report 2015/16

Mr Cerith Thomas handed out copies of the Police and 
Crime Commissioner's Annual Report 2015/16 as there was 
some additional information to the version provided in the 
agenda pack.
The Commissioner gave an overview of the contents of the 
report, including updates on the projects.

The Panel asked questions relating to Programme Fusion 
and Victim Services. The Commissioner answered the 
questions in detail.

The Chair reminded the Panel that there is a statutory duty 
to review the Annual report every year and to make a report 
or recommendation on it.
The Panel need to note the report either with or without 
recommendations.

Resolved that:

The report be accepted with no recommendations.

Page 4



14  The Rise in Racist 
Hate Incidents 
following the EU 
Referendum Result

The Chair introduced this topic and asked Cllr Richard 
Young to discuss his points. Cllr Young provided a handout 
of information he had received in relation to hate crime for 
his county. Cllr Young sought reassurance that the South 
Wales Police are doing what is required to stop this type of 
offence.

The Commissioner provided responses to the questions 
asked by the Panel in relation to instances of hate crime 
and advised that all instances must be reported to the 
Police in order to be investigated.

15  Date and time of next 
Meeting

The next meeting will be held on Tuesday 13th December 
2016 at 10:30am.

16  Any other business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

No other business to discuss.

The Chair closed the meeting at 1:10pm.

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Variation of the Police and Crime Reduction Plan

Police and Crime Panel

Background

Introduction

In accordance with s.5 (6)(c) of the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act of 2011 the 
following report sets out my proposals to vary my Police and Crime Plan. I invite the Panel to 
consider these variations in accordance with the requirements of the Act and to inform me 
if you have any comments or observations on my proposals. 

Police and Crime Reduction Plan

The main variations to the plan reflect the ongoing work within the Commissioner’s team 
and provide an updated view of what has been delivered over the past year as well as an 
updated on future expectations.  For example, the developing work on early interventions 
now includes specific references to Adverse Childhood Experiences (ACEs) which has had an 
increasing influence on our approach, as well as those of partners, over the past year. 

Another developing area is that of Public Service Boards. Whilst the Future Generations Act 
does not change the existing requirements on the local police and the local authority to lead 
a local Community Safety Partnership, it is clear that those partnership arrangements now 
need to fit into the new ethos and structures created to serve the Public Service Board. Both 
I and the Chief Constable have stressed our wholehearted commitment to the success of the 
Public Service Boards, and although policing is not yet devolved, we are pleased that Welsh 
Government so phrased the legislation to require that an invitation be given to the Police 
and Crime Commissioner and the Chief Constable to attend as full members.  

With this in mind, it is important to emphasise that whilst there is no fundamental change in 
the priorities, the refresh of the Police and Crime Reduction Plan ensures that we aligned 
with the work going on to develop well-being assessments, as well as providing a clear 
statement on how we can contribute to the delivery of joint priorities of Public Service 
Boards.  That is why we have outlined how our priorities connect with the goals set out by 
the Future Generations Act. It has also been pleasing to note that through the South Wales 
Police Compass Survey process, over 75% of the public either agree strongly or agree with 
the priorities set out within the Police and Crime Reduction Plan.

In summary, the main variations will be in the following sections of the plan:

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Achievements – this will be refreshed to reflect the work undertaken over the last year and 
any new initiatives, such as the launch of the Victim’s Focus service and our work with Public 
Health Wales on early intervention.

Roadmap – this will be updated to include future events which will have a significant impact 
on South Wales Police, such as the Champion’s League Final in May 2017, as well as 
providing expected milestones for the delivery of projects and services over the next 4 
years.

Outcomes – the current outcomes will be refreshed to provide more focus on what we want 
to achieve. We will also seek to align our priorities and outcomes with those of the Future 
Generations Act to outline how our work is linking to wider partnership work being 
undertaken by Public Service Boards.

Policing South Wales – This section will be updated with current information where 
available to provide an up to date reflection of the demand on South Wales Police.

What our partners/public are telling us – These sections will be updated following 
consultation exercises.

Recommendation

That the Police and Crime Panel acknowledge the intention to vary the content of the Police 
and Crime Reduction Plan and provide comments and feedback on the proposed refresh.

Page 8



 

 

 
 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
2 

version 2.4 
 

 
Contents Page                                                                                                                         

 
Page No. 

 

Introduction 3 

Our Governance Structure  

 Commissioner’s Strategic Board 

 Joint Change, Performance and Delivery Board (Silver) 

 Bronze Boards 

4 
5 
6 
6 

Bronze Board 1: Policing & Communities 9 

Bronze Board 2: Victims, Offenders and the Criminal Justice 
System 

11 

Bronze Board 3: Developing People to Deliver 14 

Bronze Board 4: Using Resources to Deliver 16 

Bronze Board 5: Strategic Policing Requirement 18 

  

Annex 1 - Additional Governance Mechanisms 

 Police and Crime Panel 

 HMIC 

 Audit 

 
20 
20 
21 

Annex 2 – Monitoring & Performance Framework 22 

Annex 3 - Templates 23 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
3 

version 2.4 
 

Introduction 
 
This Governance Operating Manual will provide operating guidance for the governance structures that 
will facilitate the delivery of priorities set out in the Police and Crime Reduction Plan. It outlines the 
overall governance structure from the Police and Crime Panel to the Bronze Boards, with a definition of 
the roles and responsibilities for each board.  
 
This document also supports the implementation of the provisions contained in the Manual of 
Governance signed by the Commissioner and the Chief Constable.  
 

Governance Structure 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Bronze Board 1 
 

Policing and 
Communities 

 

Commissioners Strategic 

Board 

Chief Constables 

Gold Group 
Commissioners 

Leadership Team 

Bronze Board 2 
 

Victims, 
Offender and 
the Criminal 

Justice System 

Bronze Board 3 
 
 

Developing 
People to 

Deliver 

Bronze Board 4 
 
 

Using 
Resources to 

Deliver 

Bronze Board 5 
 
 

Strategic 
Policing 

Requirement 

Work 
streams 

Work 
streams 

Work 
streams 

Work 
streams 

Work 
streams 

Silver 
Performance, Delivery and 

Change 

 
Comms 

Oversight Group 

Estates  

Strategic Group 

Page 11



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
4 

version 2.4 
 

Our Governance Structure 

 

The diagram above illustrates the architecture through which we will deliver our objectives ensuring 
accountability, fairness and transparency. It provides us with a strong focus on understanding the 
requirements and drivers of policing South Wales and the need for all decisions to be traceable back 
to the Police and Crime Reduction Plan 2016-21. 
 

The governance arrangements are designed to provide both leadership and appropriate 
accountability. The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 created two separate 
“corporations sole” within each Police Force – the Chief Constable and the Police & Crime 
Commissioner. They have clear and separate roles and responsibilities which are well understood 
in South Wales.  The operational independence of the Chief Constable is protected in legislation, 
and he is responsible for the delivery of the priorities set out in the Commissioner’s Police & Crime 
Reduction Plan.  The Commissioner is required to promote crime reduction and partnership 
working, protect the operational independence of police officers, be the voice of the public 
(especially victims) and hold the Chief Constable to account.  

 
In South Wales the Commissioner and Chief Constable have agreed that, whilst being mindful of 
their respective roles and responsibilities, these and other requirements are best delivered through 
a partnership approach of mutual support and challenge.  They have developed shared principles of 
co-operation, early intervention and prompt positive action.   

 
The practical arrangements for Joint Boards provide a clear line of sight throughout South Wales 
Police, and are consistent with the role of each “corporation sole”. The individual Boards through 
which the architecture is implemented are outlined below. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
5 

version 2.4 
 

Commissioner’s Strategic Board 
Co-chair: Police and Crime Commissioner/ Chief Constable 
The Commissioner’s Strategic Board meetings will facilitate a successful and constructive working 
relationship between the Commissioner and the Chief Constable at a strategic level leading to the 
effective delivery of the Police and Crime Reduction Plan. It is intended that there be a clear line of 
sight from the Board through every level and aspect of service across South Wales.   
 
The Board will also provide the Commissioner with a means of continuously monitoring whether 
the force is efficient and effective and is the means by which he holds the Chief Constable to account 
for the performance against the Police and Crime Reduction Plan.  
 
The Strategic Board is also the decision-making Board which sets policy and informs major strategic 
decisions for South Wales Police including approval of the Police and Crime Reduction Plan, the 
Budget and the Precept – for which the Commissioner then has to account to the Police and Crime 
Panel (see Annex 1).   
 
Whilst the legal responsibility for these three decisions rests with the Commissioner, the 
collaborative model we have developed in South Wales means that the Commissioner seeks to 
exercise his responsibilities with the full engagement of the Chief Constable and his team as well as 
the Commissioner’s own Leadership Team.   
 
The same approach of collaboration and mutual challenge is reflected through the structure and 
operation of the Silver Board and five Bronze Boards which provide the ‘Line of Sight’ from the Police 
and Crime Reduction Plan through strategic and operational command decisions to day-to-day 
policing and our work with partners.  
 
The Silver Boards will be the main reporting mechanism into the Strategic Board, but where 
necessary reports will be provided to the Commissioner’s Strategic Board from bodies that are 
outside the integrated governance model, although the relevant Bronze and Silver Board will 
consider and act on recommendations directly – for example the ‘Resources Bronze Board’ will 
generally be the point of first response to recommendations from the Joint Audit Committee.   
 
Currently the relevant bodies are: 

o Independent Ethics Committee; 
o Joint Audit Committee;  
o Joint Academic Board;   
o South Wales Criminal Justice and Integrated Offender Management Board; and 
o South Wales Out of Court Disposal Scrutiny Panel 

 
Main contact for this meeting – Cerith Thomas, Chief of Staff 
Papers circulated – At least 5 working days prior to meeting 
 
 
 

Page 13



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
6 

version 2.4 
 

Silver Board –  Performance, Delivery and Change Board   
Co-chairs: Deputy Police and Crime Commissioner / Deputy Chief Constable 
 
The Silver Board will have responsibility for monitoring the activity of the Bronze Boards and the 
progress of delivering outcomes against the strategic priorities within the Police and Crime 
Reduction Plan. The Board will ensure that there is clear line of sight from the Police and Crime 
Reduction Plan through the Chief Constable’s Delivery Plan to operational performance. Each 
Bronze Board will provide an update of work areas prior to the meeting, with the focus of the 
meeting on highlighting areas of progress and escalating risks and issues. 
 
The Silver board will also act as a mechanism for providing oversight of the relationship with Welsh 
Government and other devolved and non-devolved agencies, to ensure effective links are being 
made within workstreams. 
 
In addition, the Board will be responsible for monitoring strategic performance using CompStat as 
a basis for assessing performance, both positive and negative. Where performance issues are 
identified, the Board will either seek to resolve the issue, commission work through the relevant 
Bronze Board co-chairs, or escalate to the Commissioner’s Strategic Board.  
 
The Communications Oversight Group and Estates Strategic Board will also operate on a “Silver” 
level and will report into the Commissioner’s Strategic Board. 
 
Main contact for this meeting – Carol Woodward / Steve Routledge /  TBC 
Papers circulated – At least 3 working days prior to meeting 

 
 

Bronze Boards 
The Bronze Boards will be the key element in making the integrated governance structure work. They 
will provide the mechanisms for aligning the work of the Commissioner’s and Chief Constable’s teams 
to provide clear links and a focus on delivering the projects, review programmes and workstreams. 
 
The Bronze Boards will provide a strategic leadership forum to scrutinize delivery on the aims set out 
in the Police & Crime Reduction Plan and will be responsible for driving delivery of the specific 
priorities within their portfolios, as outlined below. The Boards will have a firm emphasis on delivery 
and outcomes and will unblock critical issues through strong leadership and clear decision making. Any 
issues that cannot be resolved at Bronze Board level will be escalated to the Silver Board. 
 
The Boards align with Chief Officer Portfolios: Chief Officers have been designated as “operational 
owners” for specific priorities that best meet these areas of work and details are outlined in each Board’s 
terms of reference. The Commissioner has designated a member of his team to act as “owner” and lead 
on his behalf in the relevant area of policy. It is the responsibility of the two “owners” as Joint Chairs to 
ensure that each Board follows a dynamic agenda and of everyone attending to ensure that the meetings 
work well to drive efficient and effective delivery.   
 

Page 14



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
7 

version 2.4 
 

 
Each Bronze Board is supported by members of the Joint Programme Office, who will be responsible for: 
 

 Liaising with Personal Assistants / Executive Support to set dates and keep all attendees 
(standing members and ad-hoc) informed. Dates will be set at least six months in advance. No 
change of date is to be made without having reached agreement with both chairs. 

 Working with both chairs to agree the content of the agenda. 

 Collating and circulating papers to all attendees. 

 Production and circulation of minutes and actions, to be approved by both chairs prior to 
circulation.  

 
The Joint Programme Office must also ensure that each board is “connected” to ensure that neither 
Boards nor Portfolios become silos. 
 

Responsibilities of the Bronze Boards 
The first two Bronze Boards are primarily about practical delivery and making things happen, namely 
“Policing and Communities” and “Victims, Offenders and the Criminal Justice System”.  These 
Boards will be responsible for hands-on delivery of the wide range of change projects and activities.   
 
The third and fourth Bronze Boards will be responsible for oversight of developing and managing 
our resources, namely “Developing our People to Deliver”, bearing in mind that our people are our 
main resource, and “Using our Resources to Deliver” which will look to ensure that all other 
resources are fit for purpose and cost-effective in aiding delivery and performance.  These Boards 
have the task of assisting performance, with a firm emphasis on delivery, outcomes and benefits to 
effective policing and crime reduction in all cases.   
 
The fifth Bronze Board will be responsible for ensuring the effective delivery against the Strategic 
Policing Requirement, the South Wales contribution to tackling regional issues of counter-terrorism, 
organized crime and public protection and accountability for such aspects that are organized jointly 
with other Forces, ensuring that the regional aspect of this area of business is fully delivered and 
well connected to work within the Force overseen by the Policing and Communities Board. 
 
It is recognized that there may be some overlap between Boards in some areas. Where this is the case 
the “owners” will have primary responsibility for identifying and managing the overlap between the 
Boards. The joint Chairs will be expected to identify cross-cutting issues that may inform the work of all 
Boards and that need to be taken into account when reviewing each Board’s work programme. Cross-
cutting areas identified as priorities for the Commissioner and the Chief Constable and reflected in the 
Police & Crime Reduction Plan are: 
 

 Partnership and co-operation 

 Early intervention and prompt, positive action 

 Responding to our communities 

 Delivery of the police and crime reduction plan 

 Demand and implications for both South Wales Police and partners 

 Risk management 

Page 15



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
8 

version 2.4 
 

 
Highlight reports will be provided by each work stream/project area and issues will be dealt with by 
exception, giving each area lead the opportunity to highlight areas of concern, delays to implementation 
and obstacles to delivery. Performance information will be provided for each project area for the Board 
to assess progress against timescales and outcomes.  
 
Each Bronze Board is supported by members of the Joint Programme Office, who will be responsible for 
collating and circulating papers, as well as working with both chairs to agree the content of the agenda 
and to ensure minutes are produced and approved by both chairs prior to circulation. 
 
Joint chairing – The Bronze Boards have been established on a joint chairing basis between the 
Commissioner and Chief Constable’s teams. No agenda or minutes/actions should be circulated until 
both chairs have agreed content. Dates and times of meetings will also need to be approved by the co-
chairs before publication. 
 

Joint Chairs are expected to be pro-active in together developing an effective agenda focused on 
prompt, positive decision-making, rather than seeing their role as reactive. The joint chairs will make 
sure the agenda enables the Board to take appropriate decisions on implementation of change and 
delivery, while ensuring that there is a proper framework and timetable for delivery of change and 
development together with proper accountability for operational and management decisions by 
Chief Officers.  Except where a report is purely about operational decisions, which will be delegated 
by a Chief Police Officer as appropriate, work will be allocated, developed and overseen jointly. In 
cases of doubt about the respective roles, issues will be escalated for the Commissioner and the 
Chief Constable to resolve. 
 
The Boards will also be designed to scrutinize delivery on the aims set out in the Police & Crime 
Reduction Plan, particularly to those aims aligned to the Board's specific remit.  The Boards will be 
expected to define what delivery means in practice including timescale, outcomes, public-facing 
impact, and expectations in terms of evidence of delivery.  The Boards will then review delivery and 
outcomes and chairs will jointly programme manage the Board's work. 
 
Main contact for meeting – See individual board terms of reference 
Papers circulated – At least 5 days prior to meeting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 16



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
9 

version 2.4 
 

Bronze Board 1: Policing and Communities 
Joint Chairs: Assistant Police and Crime Commissioner and ACC Territorial Policing 
 
The Board will “own” the delivery of the following priorities: 

 We will reduce and prevent crime and anti-social behaviour to keep people safe in their homes 
and communities.  

 We will improve the way in which we connect with, involve and inform our communities. 
 
The Policing and Communities Board will focus on the activity to deliver against the above priorities and 
the workstream areas outlined below. In addition, the board will provide support and contribute to the 
delivery of the other priorities outlined within the Police and Crime Reduction Plan. The Board will also 
monitor the effectiveness of delivery against the Memorandum of Understanding signed by the 
Commissioner and the Chief Constable with Public Health Wales 
 
Current activity/project areas: 

Policing and Communities  

Assistant Commissioner Bonnie Navarra & ACC Richard Lewis 

 Violent crime 

 Anti-Social Behaviour 

 CCTV - Review of Services 

 CID review 

 Response review 

 Response to Local Authority Re-organization 

 Information Management review 

 Information Systems review 

 Central Evidence Property Store 

 Partnership Hub  

 Programme Fusion 

 IT Disaster recovery 

 Police Community Support Officers Thematic Review Implementation 

 Licensing Thematic Review 

 Understanding The Needs of Older People 

 Stop and Search 

 Hate Crime 

 Understanding Demand 

 Memorandum of Understanding Public Health Wales - Delivery Plan 

 Early Intervention Project 

 Neighbourhood Watch 

 Third Sector Compact 

 Crime Prevention Strategy 

 All Wales Schools Programme 

 
 
 

Page 17



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
10 

version 2.4 
 

Line of sight to Police and Crime Reduction Plan outcomes: 

 An increase in the number of people who feel that their neighbourhood is a safe place to live. 

 Increased confidence to report incidents of crime & anti-social behaviour. 

 Increased perception that the police deal with local concerns. 

 Work with the Future Generations Commissioner and partners to ensure we are early adopters 

of the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015. 

 High level of public awareness of ways to tackle anti-social behaviour, including Restorative 

Justice, Community Resolution, the Community Trigger and Community Remedy. 

 Increased reporting of Violence against Women and Girls from individuals and agencies. 

 A better understanding of demand across South Wales Police. 

 All areas of demand are analysed on the basis of identifying early interventions and prompt 

actions. 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        2021 

‘Street to suite’ improves the efficiency of our officers 

24/7 Intelligence hub is created, enhancing information and 
service delivery 

Creation of 2 Major Crime hubs improving investigation 

Introduction of a predictive policing tool  

      2016 
Restructure of response model 

Bronze Board 1 
Policing and Communities 

Multi Agency 
Governance Board 

Ops Commanders 
Group 

Violent Crime Board 
ASB Thematic 

Steering Group 

Page 18



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
11 

version 2.4 
 

Bronze Board 2: Victims, Offenders and the Criminal Justice System 
Joint Chairs: Assistant Police and Crime Commissioner and ACC Support 
 
The Board will “own” the delivery of the following priorities: 

 We will make sure that the local criminal justice system works effectively and efficiently, meeting 
the needs of victims and challenging offenders. 

 We will work to protect the most vulnerable in our communities. 
 
The Victims and Offenders Board will reflect the activity to deliver against the above priorities as well as 
those areas outlined below. In addition, the board will provide support and contribute to the delivery of 
the other priorities outlined within the Police and Crime Reduction Plan. 
 
The list below has been divided into areas within the portfolios of ACC Support and ACC Specialist 
Operations for reference. All areas specified below will fall under the Assistant Police and Crime 
Commissioner responsible for this Bronze Board. 
 
Current activity/project areas: 

Victims, Offenders and the Criminal Justice System 

Assistant Commissioner Mark Brace & ACC Jeremy Vaughan 

ACC Vaughan Lead: 
 18-25 Project  

 Youth Offending Service 

 Offender Interventions (Substance misuse) 

 Victim Services - including Restorative Justice 

 Mental Health Concordat  

 Public Service Centre Review  

 Professional Standards Department Review  

 Criminal Justice Strategic Management Review 

 Custody Redesign Review 

 Specialist Operations review 

 Embedding the Code of Ethics 

 Volunteering (Including Young Police Volunteers Scheme) 

 Public Service Centre 

 Women’s Pathfinder 

 Youth Trust 

 Independent Custody Visiting 

 Animal Welfare 

 Civil Contingencies (operational oversight) 

 Public Order (operational oversight) 

 Joint Firearms Unit (operational oversight) 

 
 

Page 19



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
12 

version 2.4 
 

ACC Drake lead: 
 Child abuse/exploitation (local/South Wales) 

 Tackling violence against women and girls 

 Sex working 

 Online crime 

 Multi-agency safeguarding hub 

 Modern Day Slavery 

 Mental Health 

 Public Protection Unit review 

 Counter terrorism (operational oversight) 

 Serious organized crime (operational oversight) 

 Major cyber-attack (operational oversight) 

 Joint scientific investigation unit (operational oversight) 

 
 

Line of sight to Police and Crime Reduction Plan outcomes 

 Work with the Future Generations Commissioner and partners to ensure that we are early 

adopters of the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015, 

 Increased reporting of Violence against Women and Girls from individuals and agencies, 

 Increased awareness of the level of Child Sexual Exploitation and Abuse with improved 

support mechanisms for victims, 

 High level of satisfaction for victims of crime, 

 Increased satisfaction with the services provided to victims Reduced demand from areas of 

common interest with Public Health Wales, as identified within the Memorandum of 

Understanding 

 Reduction in the use of Section 136 of the Mental Health Act through the more appropriate 

use of facilities, 

 Reduction in 18-25 age group offending rates,  

 Reduced level of re-offending through the implementation of initiatives, such as Women’s 

Pathfinder Programme, 

 A coherent and integrated whole system approach to offender management across South 

Wales, 

 All areas of demand are analysed on the basis of identifying early interventions to take 

prompt and action,  

 An increase in the number of people who feel that their neighbourhood is a safe place to 

live. 

Page 20



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
13 

version 2.4 
 

  

        2021 

Effective support for those with Mental Health issues 

Apprenticeship opportunities within 
Force 

An established volunteer base, including Special 
Constables and Police Youth Volunteers 

5 Call Grade system improving service delivery to victims 

An expanded Digital Hub ensuring that the Force is engaging the public 
effectively 

     2016 

Increased public accessibility to our service 
through the use of technology  

Improved approach to MISPERS with an emphasis 
on the role of our partners to break demand 

Bronze Board 2 
Victims, Offenders and the Criminal Justice System 

Strategic 
Protecting 
Vulnerable 

Persons Board 

Avalon Strategic 
Board 

Mental Health Crisis Care 
Concordat Task and Finish Board 

Strategic Crime and 
Safeguarding Board 

WECTU Oversight 
Board 

Joint Scientific Investigation 
Unit Oversight Board 

South Wales Criminal Justice and 
Integrated Offender Management Board 

Regional Tasking & 
Coordination Group 

South Wales 
Safeguarding Forum 

Page 21



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
14 

version 2.4 
 

Bronze Board 3: Developing People to Deliver 
 
Joint Chairs: Assistant Police and Crime Commissioner and Director of HR,  
 
Delivery against the Police and Crime Reduction Plan: 

The Developing People to Deliver Board will provide support and assistance to deliver the 
priorities within the Police and Crime Reduction Plan as well as those areas covered by the 
portfolio of the Director of HR  
 
Current activity/project areas: 
 

Developing People to Deliver 

Assistant Commissioner Lee Jones and Director of HR Mr. Mark Milton 

 People Strategy 

 Gender Review 

 Joint Equality Plan 

 Learning and Development Service Review  

 HR Review 

 Workforce Plan 

 Health & Wellbeing - PMAS 

 Representative Workforce 

 Communicating with our people  

 
 
Line of sight to Police and Crime Reduction Plan outcomes: 

 An increase in the number of people who are confident that our people know how to make 

their neighbourhood a safe place to live, 

 Increased confidence to report  incidents of crime & anti-social behaviour, 

 Increased perception that the police deal with local concerns, 

 Work with the Future Generations Commissioner and partners to ensure that we are early 

adopters of the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015, 

 A better understanding of demand across South Wales Police, 

 All areas of demand are analysed on the basis of identifying early interventions and prompt 

actions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
15 

version 2.4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

        2021 

     2016 

A workforce that is representative of the communities it serves 

Staff are trained in early intervention techniques 

Job applications are completed online through the e-Recruitment System 

People Strategy supports the highest 
standards of service delivery and evolving 
needs of policing 

70:20:10 principles are embedded and improving development 

Page 23



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
16 

version 2.4 
 

Bronze Board 4: Using Resources to Deliver 

Joint Chairs: Chief Finance Officer and Director of Finance 
 
The Board will “own” the delivery of the following priorities: 

 We will spend your money wisely to protect policing in your community 
 

The “Using Resources to Deliver” Board will focus on the activity to deliver against the above priorities 
as well as those areas covered by the portfolio of the Director of Finance. In addition, the board will 
provide support and contribute to the other priorities outlined within the Police and Crime Reduction 
Plan. 
 

Using Resources to Deliver 

Mr. Geoff Petty & Mr. Umar Hussain 

 More efficient and effective support services that are responsive to organizational needs. 
o Joint Fleet Workshop Review 
o Finance and Force Business Centre Review 
o Procurement and Logistics Review 

 Collaborative opportunities for service delivery 
o Shared support functions collaboration 

 Continual improvement in the specification and procurement of goods and services; 

 An estate that supports operational needs and is fit for purpose; 
o Estates Review 

 Continued review of income sources and that, where appropriate, these are maximized 

 A Financial Strategy that is robust; 

 A Value for Money Plan that allows demands to be matched with resources over the 
long-term. 

 
 
Line of sight to Police and Crime Reduction Plan outcomes 
 

 An increase in the number of people who feel that their neighbourhood is a safe place to live 

 Increased confidence to report incidents of crime and anti-social behaviour 

 Increased perception that the police deal with local concerns, 

 High level of satisfaction for victims of crime. 

 Increased satisfaction with services provided to victims 

 Work with the Future Generations Commissioner and partners to ensure that we are early 

adopters of the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015, 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
17 

version 2.4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        2021 

     2016 

Implementation of a Tri-service Public Service Centre 

Victims are able to track the investigation of their 
crime online 

FIRMs is enhanced to offer electronic solutions and 
reduce bureaucracy 

Officers are all equipped with Body Worn Video cameras 

Forensic evidence is transmitted 
remotely from scene 

An Estates Strategy that clearly supports the evolving nature of our policing 

Page 25



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
18 

version 2.4 
 

Bronze Board 5: Strategic Policing 
 
Joint Chairs: Police and Crime Commissioner and Deputy Chief Constable 
 
Delivery against the Police and Crime Reduction Plan: 

 We will make our contribution to the strategic policing requirement and successfully police major 
events 

 
The Strategic Policing Requirements Board will reflect the activity to deliver against the above priority, 
and we will ensure that the regional approach to this area of business is held fully accountable for its 
work.  The Strategic Policing Requirement Board will monitor the forces approach across six key areas: 
• Public Order 
• Civil Contingencies 
• Counter Terrorism 
• Major Cyber attacks 
• Child Sexual Exploitation & Abuse 
• Serious & Organized Crime 
 
Current activity/project areas: 

Strategic Policing  

Police and Crime Commissioner & Deputy Chief Constable 

 Civil Contingencies 

 Public Order 

 Counter Terrorism  

 Serious Organized Crime 
o Tarian and WECTU Reviews 
o Covert Human Intelligence Source (CHIS) Function Review 

 Major Cyber attacks 
o Cyber Crime collaboration 

 Child Abuse / Exploitation (Regional) 

 Joint Scientific Investigation Unit 

 Joint Firearms Unit Review 

 Review of regional ACC opportunity 

 
Line of sight to Police and Crime Reduction Plan outcomes 

 An increase in the number of people who feel that their neighbourhood is a safe place to 

live, 

 An increased awareness of the level of child sexual exploitations and abuse with improved 

support mechanisms for victims, 

 A better understanding of demand across South Wales Police, 

 All areas of demand are analysed on the basis of identifying early interventions and prompt 

actions. 

Page 26



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
19 

version 2.4 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

        2021 

     2016 

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hubs (MASH) across the Force 
area 

A regional ACC for Specialist Crime 

A Centre of Excellence for Scientific 
Support services 

Bronze Board 5 
Strategic Policing Requirement 

Regional Cyber User Group Tarian Oversight Board 

Avalon Strategic 
Board 

Regional Tasking & 
Coordination Group 

Page 27



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
20 

version 2.4 
 

 
Annex 1 – Additional Governance Mechanisms: 
 

 Police and Crime Panel  
The Police and Crime Panel provides oversight to the work of the Commissioner. The Chief Constable is 
not accountable to the Panel, as that is the role of the Commissioner, but in South Wales the partnership 
approach adopted by the Commissioner and Chief Constable is regularly reflected in joint reports and 
responses to questions raised by the Panel which seeks to understand the approach being taken by 
South Wales Police on matters of public interest. The main legal responsibilities of the Panel are to: 

 Review the draft Police and Crime Plan and make recommendations to the Commissioner, who must 
have regard to them; 

 Review the Commissioner’s annual report and make recommendations at a public meeting, which 
the Commissioner must attend; 

 Deal with complaints about the Commissioner; 

 Require the Commissioner to attend the Panel to answer questions; 

 Consider the Commissioner’s proposed precept and approve/veto as appropriate; 

 Consider the Commissioner’s proposed candidate for Chief Constable and to approve/veto as 
appropriate;  

The Panel is formed of 10 Councilors from the seven Local Authorities within the South Wales Police 
area, plus two co-opted independent members. Meetings are held in public and the administration is 
provided by Merthyr County Borough Council which provides a web page with agendas, papers and 
minutes. 
(http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=349) 
 
Main contact for this meeting – Cerith Thomas, Chief of Staff 
Papers circulated – At least 5 working days before meeting (statutory requirement) 

 

 HMIC 
Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary (HMIC) independently assesses police forces and 
policing activity ranging from neighbourhood policing through serious crime to the fight against 
terrorism. The HMIC inspection programme includes the annual all force inspection programme 
(PEEL), national thematic inspections and joint inspections with other agencies. Following each 
inspection the HMIC will publish a report on their findings, providing a graded judgement of force 
performance (where appropriate) as well as outlining good practice and areas for improvement. 
Progress against recommendations will be monitored through each Bronze Board. The Police & 
Crime Commissioner will provide feedback on the report to the Home Secretary.  Updates on all 
HMIC inspections are provided to Chief Officers, the Police & Crime Commissioner and the Joint 
Audit Committee. 
 
 
 

Page 28

http://democracy.merthyr.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=349


 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
21 

version 2.4 
 

 Audit 
There are formal mechanisms for ensuring accountability through an agreed internal and external audit 
process, which assesses the work of both the Commissioner and Chief Constable. This is monitored by 
an Independent Joint Audit Committee. This Committee will consider the internal and external audit 
reports of both the Commissioner and the Chief Constable. This Committee will advise the Commissioner 
and the Chief Constable according to good governance principles and will:  

 provide independent assurance to the Commissioner and the Chief Constable regarding 
the adequacy of the risk management framework and the associated control 
environment, 

 provide independent scrutiny of the Chief Constable’s and the Commissioner’s  financial 
performance, 

 oversee the financial reporting process adopted from CIPFA Audit Committees Practical 
Guidance for Local Authorities. 

 
Specific concerns relating to areas of work be raised at the relevant Bronze Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 29



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating 

Manual 

 

 

 
22 

version 2.4 
 

Annex 2 –  Monitoring & Performance Framework (Examples Below) 
 

 
 
 

  

Page 30



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating Manual 

 

 
23 

version 2.4 
 

Annex 3 – Templates 
 Board Policing and 

Communities 
Victims, Offenders and 
the Criminal Justice 
System 

Developing our People 
to Deliver 

Using our resources to 
Deliver 

Strategic Policing  

Chairs ACC Lewis 
Assistant Chief Constable 
(Territorial Policing) 

 

ACC Vaughan 
Assistant Chief Constable 
(Support) 

Mark Milton  
Head of Shared HR 

Umar Hussain 
Chief Financial Officer 

DCC Jukes 
Deputy Chief Constable 

Bonnie Navarra 
Assistant Police and 
Crime Commissioner 

Mark Brace 
Assistant Police and 
Crime Commissioner 

Lee Jones 
Assistant Police and 
Crime Commissioner 

Geoff Petty 
Treasurer 

Alun Michael 
Police and Crime 
Commissioner 

Police and Crime Plan 
Priorities 

Priority 1  
We will reduce and 
prevent crime and anti-
social behaviour to keep 
people safe in their 
homes and communities 

 

Priority 3 
We will work to protect 
the most vulnerable in 
our communities 

Priority 4 
We will spend your 
money wisely to protect 
policing in your 
community 

Priority 4 
We will spend your money 
wisely to protect policing in 
your community 

Priority 6 
We will make our 
contribution to the 
strategic policing 
requirement and 
successfully police major 
events 

Priority 2 
We will improve the way 
in which we connect 
with, involve and inform 
our communities 

Priority 5 
We will make sure that 
the local criminal justice 
system works effectively 
and efficiently, meeting 
the needs of victims and 
challenging offenders 

Executive Support Emma Sainsbury 
Joint Programme Office 

Gaynor Maddox 
Joint Programme Office 

Sue Osarigie 
Joint Programme Office 

Martin Stevenson 
Joint Programme Office 

Emma Sainsbury 
Joint Programme Office 

P
age 31



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating Manual 

 

 
24 

version 2.4 
 

Board Policing and Communities Victims, Offenders and the Criminal Justice 
System 

Developing our People 
to Deliver 

Using our resources to 
Deliver 

Strategic Policing  

Work-
streams 

 Violent crime 

 Anti-Social Behaviour 

 CCTV - Review of 
Services 

 CID review 

 Response review 

 Response to Local 
Authority Re-
organization 

 Information 
Management review 

 Information Systems 
review 

 Central Evidence 
Property Store 

 Partnership Hub  

 General manager review 

 Programme Fusion 

 IT Disaster recovery 

 Thematic Review 
Implementation 

 Police Community 
Support Officers 

ACC Vaughan Lead: 

 18-25 Project  

 Youth Offending Service 

 Offender Interventions (Substance 
misuse) 

 Victim Services - including 
Restorative Justice 

 Mental Health Concordat  

 Public Service Centre Review  

 Professional Stand Dept. Review  

 Criminal Justice Strategic 
Management Review 

 Custody Redesign Review 

 Specialist Operations review 

 Embedding the Code of Ethics 

 Volunteering 

 Public Service Centre 

 Women’s Pathfinder 

 Youth Trust 

 Independent Custody Visiting 

 Animal Welfare 

 Civil Contingencies (operational 
oversight) 

 People Strategy 

 Gender Review 

 Joint Equality Plan 

 Learning and 
Development 
Service Review  

 HR Review 

 Workforce Plan 

 Health & Wellbeing 
- PMAS 

 Representative 
Workforce 

 Communicating 
with our people  

 More efficient and 
effective support 
services that are 
responsive to 
organizational 
needs. 

 Joint Fleet 
Workshop Review 

 Finance and Force 
Business Centre 
Review 

 Procurement and 
Logistics Review 

 Collaborative 
opportunities for 
service delivery 

 Shared support 
functions 
collaboration 

 Continual 
improvement in 
the specification 
and procurement 

 Civil Contingencies 

 Public Order 

 Counter Terrorism  

 Serious Organized 
Crime 

o Tarian and 
WECTU 
Reviews 

o Covert 
Human 
Intelligence 
Source 
(CHIS) 
Function 
Review 

 Major Cyber attacks 
o Cyber Crime 

collaboration 

 Child Abuse / 
Exploitation 
(Regional) 

 Joint Scientific 
Investigation Unit 

P
age 32



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating Manual 

 

 
25 

version 2.4 
 

 Licensing Thematic 
Review 

 Understanding The 
Needs of Older People 

 Engagement and 
Communication 

 Stop and Search 

 Hate Crime 

 Understanding Demand 

 Memorandum of 
Understanding Public 
Health Wales – Delivery 
Plan 

 Early Intervention 
Project 

 Neighbourhood Watch 

 Third Sector Compact 

 Crime Prevention 
Strategy 

 All Wales Schools 
Programme 

 

 Public Order (operational oversight) 

 Joint Firearms Unit (operational 
oversight) 

ACC Drake lead: 

 Child abuse/exploitation 
(local/South Wales) 

 Tackling violence against women 
and girls 

 Sex working 

 Online crime 

 Multi-agency safeguarding hub 

 Modern Day Slavery 

 Mental Health 

 Public Protection Unit review 

 Counter terrorism (operational 
oversight) 

 Serious organized crime 
(operational oversight) 

 Major cyber-attack (operational 
oversight) 

Joint scientific investigation unit 
(operational oversight) 

of goods and 
services; 

 An estate that 
supports 
operational needs 
and is fit for 
purpose; 

 Estates Review 

 Continued review 
of income sources 
and that, where 
appropriate, these 
are maximized 

 A Financial 
Strategy that is 
robust; 

 A Value for Money 
Plan that allows 
demands to be 
matched with 
resources over the 
long-term. 

 Joint Firearms Unit 
Review 

 Review of regional 
ACC opportunity 

 
 

P
age 33



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating Manual 

 

 
26 

version 2.4 
 

 

 
 
 

Page 34



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating Manual 

 

 
27 

version 2.4 
 

 

Page 35



 

 

How To Get Things Done  
The Governance Operating Manual 

 

 
28 

version 2.4 
 

 

Page 36



REPORT TO 

THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

13th December 2016

Oversight of Complaints.

Purpose of the Report

This report sets out complaints against the Police and Crime Commissioner for 
South Wales, and his Deputy, that have been received by the South Wales 
Police and Crime Panel since last reported. 

1.0 Background / Information

1.1 The Elected Local Policing Bodies (Complaints and Misconduct) 
Regulations 2012 make the South Wales Police and Crime Panel 
responsible for overseeing complaints made about the conduct of the 
Police and Crime Commissioner for South Wales and the Deputy 
Police and Crime Commissioner for South Wales.

1.2 The initial handling, including categorisation, recording of decision-
making, referral of criminal allegations to the Independent Police 
Complaints Commission (IPCC), and responding to the complainant in 
the first instance, is dealt with by the host local authority.

1.3 As per the Panel’s Rules of Procedure, the host local authority will 
draw the complaint to the attention of the Chair of the Panel and the 
Monitoring Officer of the host authority.

1.4 Allegations which are criminal in nature will be submitted to the 
Independent Police Complaints Commission (IPCC) for consideration. 
Non-criminal complaints will be managed by the Chair of the Panel in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer of the host authority. 

1.5 The Panel may forward / refer complaints, if they are deemed 
appropriate for local resolution, to the Commissioner’s Chief of Staff 
who will provide the Chair of the Panel with a summary of the activities 
undertaken.

2.0 Summary of complaints

2.1 A summary of the complaints received since last reported to the Panel 
in October 2014 is attached (Appendix I)

Page 37

Agenda Item 8



2.2 A copy of the complaint case file is available for review by members of 
the Panel.

3.0 Recommendation(s)

3.1 The Panel is asked to note the content of the report.

Simon Jones
Senior Solicitor

Page 38



Appendix I

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

       2013/03 2nd July 2013

16th September 2016

Criminal complaint.

Criminal complaint.

3rd October 2013

2nd December 2016

Details of Complaint

Initial complaint about Police. Subsequent complaint against Chief Constable and 
Commissioner alleging that Commissioner has colluded with Police in failing to investigate the 
illegal actions of the Police (perverting course of justice).

Subsequent complaint made direct to IPCC – no new evidence – therefore no further 
investigation

Action

Complaint 1 - Referred to Commissioner’s Chief of Staff for informal resolution.

Complaint 2 – recorded as a complaint because it alleged criminal conduct but no further 
investigation carried out.

Resolution

Complaint not upheld

Page 39



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2014/02   16th April 2014

2nd November 2016

               Complaint.

               Complaint.

 8th December 2014

Details of Complaint

Complaint that the Commissioner had failed to respond to letters asking him to deal with 
Police corruption.

10th June 2015 - Complaint to IPCC regarding the Panel’s handling of his complaint. IPCC 
deem complaint not valid and cannot be dealt with by them.

Second complaint that Commissioner has failed to respond to letter 8th September 2014.

Action

Referred to Commissioner’s Chief of Staff for informal resolution.

Second complaint referred to Chief of Staff – response received to be determined by the Chair 
and the Council’s M.O. in line with Rules of Procedure.

Resolution

Complaint 1 - Panel UPHELD complaint in part – Commissioner has since responded to the 
complainant.

Complaint 2 – to be determined.

Page 40



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2014/03   10th June 2014

   9th November 2015

17th August 2016

               Complaint.

     Complaint – Not recorded.

Complaint – Not recorded.

10th November 2014

8th January 2016

20th October 2016

Details of Complaint

Complaint 1 - that the Commissioner failed to respond to letters asking PCC to investigate 
complaint against Chief Constable.

Complaint 2 – Commissioner delayed unreasonably in responding to the complaint detailed 
above – Not recorded as a complaint as this was a complaint about the Chief of Staff.

Complaint 3 – to Local Government Ombudsman regarding maladministration on the part of 
the Panel 

Action

Complaint 1 Referred to Commissioner’s Chief of Staff for informal resolution.

Complaint 2 – considered by the Chair & MO

Complaint 3 – considered by the Ombudsman – out of time. Appealed decision 
recommendations made.

Resolution

Complaint 1 – Complaint not upheld – valid reasons supplied by Commissioner for failing to 
respond. 

Complaint 2 – not upheld – delay not unreasonable.

Complaint 3 – no action upon recommendations.

Page 41



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2014/04   3rd July 2014              Conduct matter      7th January 2015

Details of Complaint

Referral made concerning Deputy PCC – offence contrary to Children & Young Persons Act 
1949

Action

Referred to IPCC .

Resolution

Confidential – no comment from DPCC or the Commissioner

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2014/05   11thSeptember 2014                Complaint.   9th December 2014

Details of Complaint

Complaint that Commissioner has failed to respond to correspondence

Action

Referred to Commissioner’s Chief of Staff for informal resolution.

Resolution

Case UPHELD – Panel satisfied with response.

Page 42



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2014/06   22ndSeptember 2014        Non recorded complaint.      15th January 2015

Details of Complaint

Complaint that Commissioner is part of a criminal conspiracy in failing to investigate 
her complaints about the Police.

Action

Referred to Commissioner’s Chief of Staff.

Resolution

Matter considered by the Chief of Staff – complaint not recorded.

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2015/01   12th May 2015 Non recorded complaint or 
conduct matter

     23rd September 
2015

Details of Complaint

Complaint that Commissioner was aware of the “cover up” of serious criminal offences 
– comment made on twitter – referral from PCCs Office.

Action

Referred to MO and Chair to consider the evidence submitted by PCC’s Office.

Resolution

Matter considered and not recorded as a complaint or conduct matter,

Page 43



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2015/02   1st June 2015        Complaint.   1st December 2015

Details of Complaint

Complaint that Commissioner has failed to respond or adequately respond to a 
complaints about the Chief Constable. Further complaint about a conflict of interest 
between PCC’s legal team and SWPs legal team.

Action

Referred to Commissioner’s Chief of Staff.

Resolution

Response from the PCC’s Chief of Staff considered by MO and Chair. Complaint about the 
PCC failing to respond NOT UPHELD. The complaint concerning the shared legal services 
was similarly NOT UPHELD.

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2015/03   24th February 2015        Not recorded.    25th February 2015

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of SWP.

Action

Response sent to complainant.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Page 44



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2015/04   12th May 2015             Not recorded. 13th May 2015

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of SWP.

Action

Response sent to complainant.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2015/05   3rd November 2015             Not recorded. 16th November 2015

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of SWP.

Action

Response sent to complainant.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Page 45



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/01   Undated 2016             Not recorded. 15th January 2016

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of SWP.

Action

Response sent to complainant.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/02   11th March 2016             Serious complaint. 1st July 2016

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of the PCC who is alleged to have perverted the course of 
justice.

Action

Referral to IPCC.

Resolution

No indication of criminal conduct – complaint NOT UPHELD.

Page 46



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/03   Undated             Not recorded. 4th April 2016

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of SWP.

Action

Response sent to complainant.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/04   20th March 2016             Not recorded. 11th April 2016

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of SWP.

Action

Response sent to complainant.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Page 47



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/05   9th March 2016             Serious complaint 16th November 2015

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of the PCC who is alleged to have perverted 
the course of justice in failing to investigate serious offences centred around a Cardiff 
Mosque.

Action

Referral sent to IPCC..

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/06   7th March 2016             Not recorded. 12th May 2016

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of officers of SWP.

Action

Referred to Commissioner.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Panel – no action.

Page 48



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/07   3rd August 2016             Not recorded. 4th October 2016

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the Commissioners failure to investigate the actions of SWP officers 
and HMRC officers.

Action

Response sent to complainant.

Resolution

Outside remit of the Commissioner – no action.

Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/08   7th October 2016             Serious complaint.

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of the PCC who is alleged to have covered up corruption 
in SWP.

Action

Referred to IPCC.

Resolution

Page 49



Complaints received by the
South Wales Police and Crime Panel

PCP Ref Date Complaint Received Complaint Category Date Complaint Closed

     2016/09   14th October 2016             Serious complaint

Details of Complaint

Complaint about the actions of the PCC who is alleged to have covered up corruption 
in SWP.

Action

Referred to IPCC.

Resolution

Page 50



REPORT TO 

THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

13th December 2016

Schedule of Meetings. 

Purpose of the Report
To seek the views of Members on supplementing the current schedule of 
meetings with additional informal meetings.

1.0 Background  Information
1.1 At the Panels meeting on 18th October 2016 the matter of 

supplementing the Panel’s schedule of formal meetings with additional 
informal meetings was raised. It was suggested that any additional 
meetings might be prior to or following a scheduled meeting (i.e. on the 
same day), or as added meeting dates to the agreed schedule of 
meetings. It was felt that this could enhance the role of the Panel in 
supporting and scrutinising the Commissioner. 

1.2 Such meetings could be used, for example, to discuss and develop the 
work programme, or for discussion on emerging issues. It was felt that 
the current arrangements do not allow for sufficient time to consider 
and plan the work of the Panel.

1.3 It was agreed that an item be agended for today’s meeting to allow 
further discussion on the suggestion, hence this report.

1.4 As members are aware the Panel’s Rules of Procedure provide that 
there shall be a minimum of four ordinary meetings of the Panel held in 
public in each municipal year to carry out the functions of the Panel. 

1.5 During 2013/14 there were six meetings (including a training event with the 
WLGA); 2014/15 there were also six; and 2015/16, five. There are also 
scheduled for 2016/17 (including the training event held on 29th November 2016).
  

1.6 To remind Members, the following schedule of meetings was agreed 
for 2016/17 and 2017/18:-

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



2016/17 

 Thursday 30th June 2016 (Annual Meeting) 
 Tuesday 18th October 2016 
 Tuesday 13th December 2016 
 Thursday 26th January 2017 (Precept) 
 Thursday 23rd March 2017 

2017/18 

 Tuesday 23rd May 2017 (Annual Meeting) 
 Further 4 dates yet to be agreed.

2.0 Recommendation(s) that:-
  

2.1 The Panels decides how it wishes to proceed.

Simon Jones
Senior Solicitor. 

Page 52



REPORT TO 

THE SOUTH WALES POLICE AND CRIME PANEL

13th December 2016

Annual Work Programme

Purpose of the Report
To give Members an opportunity to consider the work programme and to 
suggest further topics for inclusion.

1.0 Introduction / Background
1.1 The Panel is responsible for setting its own work programme taking into 

account the priorities defined by the Commissioner and also delivering 
its responsibilities within the context of its terms of reference (see 
attached). 

1.2 In setting the work programme the Panel will also take into account the 
wishes of its Members. All Members of the Panel are able to suggest 
items for possible inclusion in the work programme. A work programme 
will enable the Panel to plan and focus on how it will effectively provide 
challenge to the Commissioner.

1.3 The Panel has certain statutory functions, set out in the Police Reform 
and Social Responsibility Act. Panels will need to focus on these 
ongoing key functions: 

 reviewing the police and crime plan 
 reviewing the PCC’s annual report
 reviewing the policing precept
 carrying out confirmation hearings for certain senior appointments
 carrying out confirmation hearings for the chief constable
 investigating complaints about non-criminal behaviour of the Commissioner. 

1.4 Panels must assure themselves of the fair, effective and efficient 
deployment of police resources and that police and crime commissioners 
are committed to delivering the priorities laid out in their police and crime 
plans.

Page 53

Agenda Item 10



1.4 Under the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act, the Panel has 
the power to call in the Commissioner, and the Commissioner’s staff, to 
give evidence at panel meetings, and to invite the chief constable to give 
evidence. Other than the Commissioner and his staff, the panel cannot 
require any other person to attend to give evidence. This reflects the fact 
that the panel exists to scrutinise and support the Commissioner, not the 
police or any other person or body.

1.5 So far as practicable the Panel shall consult with the Commissioner in 
detailing its work programme in order to ensure the Panel is able to 
support and challenge the PCC.

2.0 Recommendation(s)
  

2.1 That the Panel agrees the work programme items for the remainder of 
the agreed meeting timetable.

Simon Jones,
Senior Solicitor. 

Page 54



APPENDIX I

South Wales Police and Crime Panel

Terms of Reference

1. To review and make a report or recommendation on the draft South Wales Police and 
Crime Plan, or draft variation to the South Wales Police and Crime Plan, provided to 
the Panel by the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner.

2. To review, put questions to the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner at a 
public meeting of the Panel, and make a report or recommendation (as necessary) on 
the annual report.

3. To hold a confirmation hearing and review, make a report and recommendation (as 
necessary) in respect of proposed senior appointments made by the South Wales 
Police and Crime Commissioner.

4. To review and make a report on the proposed appointment of the Chief Constable.

5. To review and make a report and recommendation (as necessary) on the proposed 
precept.

6. To review or scrutinise decisions made, or other action taken, by the South Wales 
Police Crime Commissioner in connection with the discharge of the Commissioners 
functions (as defined by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act and 
subsequent amendments)

7. To make reports or recommendations to the South Wales Police and Crime 
Commissioner with respect to the discharge of the Commissioners functions (as 
defined by the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act and subsequent 
amendments)

8. To support the effective exercise of the functions of the South Wales Police and Crime 
Commissioner.

9. To fulfil functions in relation to complaints about conduct matters, in accordance with 
the responsibilities accorded to the Panel under the Police Reform and Social 
Responsibility Act.

10. To appoint an Acting South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner if necessary.

11. To suspend the South Wales Police and Crime Commissioner if it appears to the Panel 
that the Commissioner has been charged in the United Kingdom or Isle of Man with an 
offence which carries a maximum term of imprisonment exceeding two years.

12. To carry out any other Police and Crime Panel functions and exercise any supporting 
powers contained in The Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011 in addition 
to those set out above.

Adopted by the South Wales Police and Crime Panel on the 7th January 2013

Page 55



APPENDIXII

Page 56


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)
	Minutes

	5 Refresh of the Police and Crime Plan
	6 Governance Operating Manual
	8 Oversight of Complaints
	9 Schedule of Meetings
	10 Annual Work Programme

